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Constructed and perhaps designed by John Huddleston, the exist­ 
ing Harrison County Courthouse was originally a single temple- 
like block with portico. The brick walls are set directly on 
a smooth stone foundation of long narrow blocks, topped by a 
handsome classical cornice apparently supported by flat Doric 
pilasters spaced regularly between the window bays and propor­ 
tioned according to the four Tuscan columns of the portico. 
Originally chimneys with double chimney pots extended the pilas 
ters along the sides above the roof line; these were removed by 
the time of t;he 20th-century additions. The original main door 
frame and those along the sides that probably gave direct acces 
to offices on the first floor were severe square frames. The 
windows as shown in the early lithograph (Plate #5) have stone 
lintels and shutters. The rather short octagonal cupola set on 
a square pedestal just behind the portico must have seemed 
proportionately larger over the single block. It has pilasters 
at the angles and a low curved roof.

According to historian William H. Perrin the ground floor con­ 
sisted of the circuit clerk's office, the offices of the County 
Judge and Sheriff, and two law offices which were for rent and 
always in demand. The windows of the upper story were consid­ 
erably longer than those below, reflecting the placement of the 
large courtroom, which filled the upper floor except for two 
small jury rooms flanking the stairhall at the front of the 
building. The stripped Doric pilasters and lintels surviving 
in the courtroom and jury rooms have a crude power echoing 
that of the exterior details, in spite of a lowered ceiling 
and other minor alterations.

In 1916 a well-proportioned wing was added on either side. 
Although the sense of a classical temple was thereby somewhat 
modified, the treatment of the additions is very harmonious, to 
the point of almost improving the composition of the whole. 
Both the main block and the wings are set well back within the 
courthouse square. The courthouse is still surrounded by trees 
that remove it effectively from the mainly- commercial structures 
that surround and define the square.   

Like most courthouses in Kentucky surviving from the mid-19th 
century, the Harrison County Courthouse has been painted in 
recent years. Although the early lithograph gives little 
indication of coloration, a photograph taken shortly after the 
addition of the wings shows the structure with red brick
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The Harrison County Courthouse, built in 1851-53, is a relative 
simple but attractive example of the Greek Revival courthouse 
in Kentucky. Two harmoniously related flanking wings erected 
in 1914 did not alter the basic relation of the structure to 
the surrounding courthouse square, which is located to one side 
of the main commercial street of Cynthiana, once one of the 
highroads between central Kentucky and the Ohio River.

Harrison County was established in 1793 out of parts of Bourbon 
and Scott Counties. It was named after Colonel Benjamin Harrison 
then a representative of Bourbon County in the Kentucky Legis­ 
lature. Harrison was also a representative at the first two 
conventions held at Danville in 1787 and 1788, as well as the 
1792 convention which approved the first Kentucky Constitution.

The Harrison County Courthouse was built on the original public 
square given to the town by Robert Harrison in 1792. It was 
also Harrison who named the town in which the courthouse is 
located after his daughters, Cynthia and Ann. Incorporated 
in 1802, Cynthiana is situated on the right bank of the south 
fork of the Licking River thirty-seven miles from Frankfort.

Harrison County's first permanent courthouse was a two-story 
log structure, later sold to help pay for the second one, which 
was erected in 1816 at a cost of $12,000. This building burned 
in 1851 and the present courthouse was begun in that same year 
The, rbuilder, iwas. J^ohn, Huddles ton, who completed the project in 
1853. The rock-hewn door, sills and lintels used are said to 
have been hauled over dirt roads from Cincinnati. A four-faced 
town clock was installed in the cupola in 1856 and remains a 
town landmark. The building was refurbished extensively in 
1892, but remained barely adequate for the expanding needs of 
the community until it was enlarged in 1914-16.
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walls and contrasting white columns, cornice, lintels, and panels 
above the upper windersof the wings to fill in the space left 
above windows shorter than those of the courtroom. The main 
entrance was also altered to allow for a more or less Federal -styll 
columnar frame and fanlight. Other alterations were made, partic-| 
ularly to the lower story, at this time.
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The architect engaged for the design of the additions was John T. 
Gillig of Lexington, who was also the superintendent for the 
Federal post office being constructed in Cynthiana at that time. 
The Cynthiana Democrat of June 4, 1914, presented the architect's 
sketch of the proposed additions and characteristically commented; 
"That the county is badly in need of more commodious quarters for 
the transaction of its business is beyond question, and it is not 
believed advisable to attempt a new courthouse.

"The present building can be made of so much use and is of so 
fine a style of architecture that it would be a crime to raze it. 
The additions suggested would meet all present requirements and 
for many years to come, with very little expense and no increase 
of the tax rate. ... We should say that a total of $15,000 
would cover all expenses, both wings, including retouching the 
old building and bringing everything into conformity." On Octo­ 
ber 8, 1914, the Democrat boasted that "when the work is completed, 
. . . Harrison County will have a temple of justice of which all 
the people may be proud. It is particularly fortunate that the 
present building is to be retained." The added wings contained 
mainly office space for the county judge and clerk, a room for 
the fiscal court, and modernized toilet facilities.

Primarily used for county transactions, this courthouse and 
earlier buildings on the site have been the locale of several 
famous trials and provided the setting for a number of eminent 
jurists. "Perhaps the most famous case in the court's record," 
wrote Elizabeth Garr, "is that of David Sheeley, sentenced to be 
hanged for the murder of his wife, Nancy. One night in 1847, 
David and a friend came home late from fishing. Nancy, already 
in bed, refused to get up to cook the fish they had caught. The 
men proceeded to drink most of the night and awoke the next 
morning to find Nancy murdered. David, too drunk to remember 
what happened, was charged with the murder, tried, convicted and 
hanged. Only on his death bed did the other man confess to the 
murder. And the ghost of David Sheeley so haunts this courthouse 
that only two death sentences have been handed down from that 
day to this.

'Nationally-known figures who tried cases in this court were Henry 
Clay; John G. Carlisle of Covington, Speaker of the U. S. House

(continued) GPO 921-724
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of Representatives and Secretary of the Treasury under Grover 
Cleveland; and Stanley F. Reed, Judge of U.S. Supreme Court. An 
early eminent citizen was Judge John Trimble, who was appointed 
third judge of the "new court" of Appeals in January 1825. Presi 
dent John 0. Adams appointed him U.S. Judge for the District of 
Kentucky. "1

Elizabeth Headley Garr, History of Kentucky Courthouses. 
(Louisville: Natl. Soc. of the Colonial Dames of Am., 1972), 
p. 79.
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